oldman Research
achs

Economics Research

22 May 2026 | 1:31PM EDT

USA: Governor Waller Supports Removing Easing Bias From FOMC

Post-Meeting Statement

BOTTOM LINE: In a speech at the Centre for Central Banking in Frankfurt, Fed
Governor Christopher Waller said he would support removing the implicit easing bias
from the FOMC’s post-meeting statement. While Waller said he did not think the
FOMC should hike “in the near future,” he noted he could “no longer rule out rate
hikes further down the road if inflation does not abate soon,” especially if inflation
expectations showed “signs of becoming unanchored.” At the same time, Waller said
there would need to be “improvement on inflation or a significant deterioration in
the labor market” for him to support cuts. Waller’s comments today and the minutes
to the FOMC’s April meeting released on Wednesday suggest that the Committee has
become more reluctant to cut and more open to the possibility of rate hikes in recent
weeks.

MAIN POINTS:

1.In a speech at the Centre for Central Banking in Frankfurt, Fed Governor
Christopher Waller said he would support removing the implicit easing bias from the
FOMC’s post-meeting statement. While Waller said he did not think the FOMC should
hike “in the near future,” he noted he could “no longer rule out rate hikes further
down the road if inflation does not abate soon,” especially if inflation expectations
showed “signs of becoming unanchored.” At the same time, Waller said there would
need to be “improvement on inflation or a significant deterioration in the labor
market” for him to support cuts.

2. Waller said that recent data showed that “inflation is not headed in the right
direction.” He noted that the ultimate effects of the Middle East conflict on inflation
would “depend on the length of the conflict, how severely supplies are disrupted,
and the pass-through of input costs to final product prices,” which he said were
“more uncertain than was the impact of tariffs.” Waller also said he found the
breadth of consumer price increases in April “concerning.”

3. Waller noted that long-term inflation expectations still “appear well anchored.”
That said, he stressed that the recent increases in some measures of inflation
expectations over the next 1-5 years were “concerning” and noted the risk that
people come to expect persistently higher inflation following a series of supply
shocks. He said he would be monitoring market-based measures of long-term
inflation expectations “carefully.” Long-term inflation expectations in the University
of Michigan were revised up 0.5pp to 3.9% in the final May reading at the same time
that Waller’s speech was published.

4. Waller noted that the economy had grown at a “solid” pace recently, reflecting
“torrid” investment in artificial intelligence and “resilient” consumer spending

Jan Hatzius
+1(212)902-0394 | jan.hatzius@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Alec Phillips
+1(202)637-3746 | alec.phillips@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

David Mericle
+1(212)357-2619 |
david.mericle@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Ronnie Walker
+1(917)343-4543 |
ronnie.walker@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Manuel Abecasis
+1(212)902-8357 |
manuel.abecasis@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Elsie Peng
+1(212)357-3137 | elsie.peng@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Pierfrancesco Mei
+1(212)902-8809 |
pierfrancesco.mei@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Jessica Rindels
+1(972)368-1516 |

jessica.rindels@gs.com
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

WEGEH IV

Investors should consider this report as only a single factor in making their investment decision. Fc

certification and other important disclosures, see the Disclosure Appendix, or go to
www.gs.com/research/hedge.html.



mailto:jan.hatzius@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:alec.phillips@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:david.mericle@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:ronnie.walker@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:manuel.abecasis@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:elsie.peng@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:pierfrancesco.mei@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
mailto:jessica.rindels@gs.com?subject=USA%3A%20Governor%20Waller%20Supports%20Removing%20Easing%20Bias%20From%20FOMC%20Post-Meeting%20Statement
https://research.gs.com/
https://www.gs.com/research/hedge.html

Goldman Sachs

22 May 2026

despite higher energy prices. He also said that the recent data suggested the labor
market may have “finally come into a rough balance” and that he does not “see the
prospect of a weakening labor market as the dominant force that should be guiding
monetary policy in the months ahead.”

5. Waller’s comments today and the minutes to the FOMC’s April meeting released on
Wednesday suggest the Committee has become more reluctant to cut and more open to
the possibility of rate hikes in recent weeks.


https://publishing.gs.com/content/research/en/reports/2026/05/20/f7022fce-7fcd-4827-b792-04406b9f24d2.html

